
CITY OF DAPHNE 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

AUGUST 18, 2014 

6:30 P.M.  

                                                                  
 1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 2.  ROLL CALL / INVOCATION /  Pastor Johnny Hunt of Celebration Church 

  
 3.  APPROVE MINUTES:      Council meeting minutes / August 4, 2014    

                                                     Special Called Council meeting minutes / August 5, 2014 

                                                     Special Called Council meeting minutes / August 7, 2014 

                                                     Emergency Special Called Council meeting minutes / August 11, 2014 

                                                     Council Work Session minutes / August 11, 2014 

 

PRESENTATION:  Tristan Daniels / Eagle Scout Project @ Village Point Preserve     

 

PRESENTATION:   Update on Recreation Programs / Coach Vickery                                                 

                

4. REPORT STANDING COMMITTEES: 
A. FINANCE COMMITTEE – Conaway 

             Review minutes / August 11
th
  

             1.)    Ordinances: 

                      a.)   FEMA National Flood Insurance Program Buyout / City Sponsor / Ordinance 2014-37                       

 

            2.)    Resolutions: 

                     a.)    Bid Award:  2014-Q-Portable Restrooms / Jag Mobile Solutions / Resolution 2014-49          

 

            3.)   Financial Reports: 
 Treasurers Report / July 2014 

 Sales & Use Tax Collections / June 2014 

 Lodging Tax Collections / June 2014 

 

B.      BUILDINGS & PROPERTY  COMMITTEE -  Davis   

          Review Minutes / August 4
th
  

              a.)  Assist Lamar and Willet White with their FEMA buyout application   / Ordinance 2014-37 

              b.)  Declaring Certain Property Surplus / 1987 Griggs 10 HP Generator / 1979 Briggs 8HP Generator / 

                     Resolution 2014-47 

 

C. PUBLIC SAFETY -  Rudicell    

    Review minutes / August 13
th
  

 

D. CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -  Scott 

    Review minutes / August 13
th
  

     

E. PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – LeJeune 

 
 5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  
   A.  Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones         

         Review minutes / June 5
th
  

   Review Staff report / August 7
th
  meeting 

 

   B.  Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway      

   C.  Industrial Development Board – Davis       

   D.  Library Board - Lake  
   E.   Planning Commission – Scott           

F. Recreation Board – LeJeune 

G.  Utility Board - Fry  

 
August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 1



 

 

COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                        AUGUST 18, 2014                                PAGE   2 

 

 

 

6.  REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

     A.  Mayors Report 

           MOTION:  To authorize the Mayor to enter into a memorandum of Agreement with ALDOT regarding  

                                 removal and disposal of storm debris from ALDOT maintained rights-of-way/roadways 

 

     B.  City Attorney’s Report:  

           Executive Session: Personnel Issue & Pending Litigation 

 

     C.  Department Head Comments: 

     D.  City Clerk Report: 

           a.)  Parade Permit / The Scott Ward Memorial Fund / November 15, 2014 

  

              

 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:   

 

8. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

 

RESOLUTIONS: 

 
a.)   Declaring Certain Property Surplus / 2 Generators. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2014-47 

 

b.)   Bid Award: Portable Restrooms / Jag Mobile Solutions. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2014-49 

 

 

ORDINANCES:  
        

        2
ND

 READ      

a.)    Appropriation of Funds:  Mast Arm Poles & Signal Upgrade / 

         Johnson Road and US Hwy 98. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-32 

 

b.)    Pre-zone: Property Located Northwest of the Intersection of 

        County Roads 13 & 64 /Baldwin County District 15 to B-2,  

        General Business, City of Daphne. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2014-33 

 

c.)    Annexation: Property Located Northwest of the Intersection  

        of County Roads 13 & 64. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2014-34 

          

d.)   Repealing & Replacing Ordinance 2008-19 / Protecting the Air 

        Quality in the City of Daphne. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-35 

 

 

 

       1
ST

 READ 
a.)    Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA): Hazard Mitigation  

        Grant Program (HMGP) disaster Assistance for Lamar and Willet White 

         104 Gordon Circle. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-37 

 

 

 

9.    COUNCIL COMMENTS        

10.  ADJOURN August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 2



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

CITY COUNCIL: 

 

COUNCILWOMAN CONAWAY    PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN RUDICELL     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN LAKE     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN LEJEUNE     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN DAVIS     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCIL PRESIDENT FRY    PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

MAYOR: 

MAYOR HAYGOOD     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

CITY CLERK: 

REBECCA HAYES      PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 

JAY ROSS       PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 3



AUGUST 4, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e1
 

 

1.    CALL TO ORDER:  

There being a quorum present Council President Fry called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.       

 

2.    ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

Rabbi Donald Kunstadt with the Springhill Avenue Temple gave the invocation. 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:    

Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis. 

 

Also present:  Mayor Haygood arrived at 6:40 p.m.; Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Sarah Toulson, 

Assistant City Clerk; Jay Ross, City Attorney; Kevin Boucher, Attorney with Adams & Reese; ; Richard 

Johnson, Public Works Director; Adrienne Jones, Community Development Director; Margaret 

Thigpen, Civic Center Director; Richard Merchant, Building Official; Vickie Hinman, HR Director; 

David Carpenter, Police Chief; James White, Fire Chief; David McKelroy, Recreation Director; 

Christine Ciancetta, Deputy Finance Director; Dorothy Morrison, Beautification Committee and 

Downtown Redevelopment Authority; Al Guarisco, Village Point Foundation; Larry Cooke, BZA; 

Willie Robison, BZA; Heiko Einfeld, Executive Director of the ES Chamber of Commerce. 

 

Absent: Mayor Dane Haygood; Michael Hoyt, Municipal Judge; ; Tonja Young, Library Director; 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 
1. Pre-Zoning:   John White-Spunner, Kidco,  L.L.C.; John White-Spunner Sidno, L.L.C.  

                                                     and Matt White 

Present Zoning:    B-1, Professional Business District, Baldwin County District 15 

Proposed Pre-zoning:  B-2, General Business, City of Daphne 

Location:   Property Located Northwest of the Intersection of County Roads 13  

                                      and 64 

Recommendation:  Unanimous Favorable 

 

2. Annexation:   John White-Spunner, Kidco,  L.L.C.; John White-Spunner Sidno, L.L.C 

                              and Matt White 

Location:   Property Located Northwest of the  Intersection of County Roads 13  

and 64 

Recommendation:   Unanimous Favorable 

 

 

Mrs. Adrienne Jones, Community Development Director and Mr. Darrell Russell with Rester and 

Coleman Engineers gave the presentation. 

 

Council President Fry opened the Public Hearing at 6:37 p.m. 

 

Mr. Lou Dixon – 9167 Brookshire Loop – spoke for a group of residents against the pre-zoning. 

 

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 4



AUGUST 4, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e2
 

 

Mrs. Emily Rome – 9332 Brookshire Loop – spoke for a group of residents against the pre-zoning. 

 

Council President Fry closed the Public Hearing at 6:43 p.m. 

 

 

3.    APPROVE MINUTES: 

July 21, 2014 Council meeting minutes 

There being no correction to the July 21, 2014 council meeting minutes the minutes stand approved as 

written. 

 

 

4.    REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

 A.   FINANCE COMMITTEE – Conaway 

The next meeting will be August 11
th

 at 4:00 p.m. 

  

      B.   BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE - Davis 
The committee met before the council meeting, and the minutes will be in the next packet.  The next 

meeting will be Tuesday, September 2
nd

 at 5:00 p.m. 

 

      C.   PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE – Rudicell  

The next meeting will be August 13
th

 at 4:30 p.m. 

 

      D.   CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE – Scott 

There is one ordinance on the agenda 2014-35 - Protecting the Air Quality in the City of Daphne which 

include e-cigarettes, and will be a first read.  The next meeting will be August 13
th

 after the Public 

Safety meeting. 

 

      E.   PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE – LeJeune 

The minutes for the July 21
st
 are in the packet along with the June 23

rd
 Environmental Advisory 

Committee minutes.  There is a resolution on the agenda 2014-42 which supports improvements to the I-

10 and Hwy 181 interchange. 

 

 

5.    REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS: 

      A.   Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

The next meeting will be August 7
th

 and due to the special called council meeting the meeting has been 

moved to 3:00 p.m. with one item on the agenda.  There will not be a meeting in September. 

 

B.   Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway 

The next meeting will be July 27
th

 at 5:30 p.m. 

 

C.   Industrial Development Board – Davis 

Councilman Davis introduced Mr. Heiko Einfeld as the new Director for the Eastern Shore Chamber of 

Commerce.  The next meeting will be July 28
th

.  

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 5



AUGUST 4, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e3
 

 

D.   Library Board – Lake 

Councilman Lake gave the figures for the Summer Book Reading Program, and announced that the 

Friends of the Library will sponsor the Book Mark Contest that will be September 8-27.  The next 

meeting will be August 14
th

 at 4:00 p.m. 

 

     E.   Planning Commission – Scott 

The minutes for the June 26
th

 meeting are in the packet along with the staff reports for the June 26
th

 and 

July 24
th

 meetings.   

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to set a Public Hearing date for September 15, 2014 6:30 

p.m. and approve advertising to consider:  Amending the Land Use and Development 

Ordinance 2011-54 Appendix H / Revisions to Zoning Map.   Seconded by Councilwoman 

Conaway. 

 

                                               MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

     F.   Recreation Board – LeJeune 

Fall sports are starting up.   The next meeting will be August 13
th

 at 6:30 p.m. 

 

Council President Fry asked after consideration at the work session what is their next step? 

 

Councilman LeJeune said that they need to make a determination on the location Park Drive or 

elsewhere.  They need to consider the $2 million to move dirt at Park Drive, and compare the price of 

another property to the expense of moving dirt.  They also need to look at the financing aspect. 

 

Council President Fry requested that this be put on the August work session agenda. 

 

    G.   Utility Board – Fry 

The June 25
th

 minutes are in the packet. Council President Fry received notice that Rob McElroy, 

General Manager of Daphne Utilities has resigned effective at the end of the month.  Mr. Bob Segalls, 

Chairman of the Daphne Utility Board, notified him that Mr. Danny Lyndall will be interim General 

Manager.  The next meeting will be the last Wednesday of the month. 

 

6.    REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

 A.  Mayor’s Report 

Mayor Haygood received notice today that the city will be moving on to a second level application 

process for the Village Point Coastal Marsh Boardwalk grant application.  This is where approximately 

$88,000 in funding was requested to extend the boardwalk.  Things are proceeding positively.  The 27
th

 

Annual Coastal Cleanup is Saturday, September 20
th

.  Throughout the 27 years 72,000 volunteers have 

removed over 1,458,000 pounds of debris and trash from the coastline.           

 

 

 

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 6



AUGUST 4, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e4
 

 

B.  City Attorney’s Report 
Mr. Ross reminded council of the Special Called Council meeting tomorrow at 5:30 p.m. and on 

Thursday at 5:30 p.m.  There is a lawsuit by Malbis Lane and the Homeowners Association against the 

Baldwin County Commission, City of Daphne and others that settled in large part because Malbis’s 

lease ended with CVS, and CVS decided to drop the case.  The settlement states that the governmental 

entities agrees that if a new developer comes up they have to start all over again.  There is no precedent 

set by this body, Baldwin County Commissioners or the Baldwin County Planning Commission with 

respect to any grants, variances, etc. that were issued to the developer.  There is no money owed by the 

city on this case, but the mayor needs to be authorized to sign on behalf of the city, and the Baldwin 

County Commission has done the same. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to authorize the Mayor and city attorney to execute the general 

release on behalf of the City of Daphne in the case known as Malbis Lane/Vlahos Lane 

Homeowners Association, et al. vs. Baldwin County Commission, et al., bearing Circuit Civil 

Case No. 2013-900923.   Seconded by Councilman Lake.    

                                 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

   

 

Councilwoman Conaway asked Mayor Haygood about his trip to London for the Air Show. 

 

Mayor Haygood said it was a very productive trip.  There was a great delegation from Alabama that 

attended the Air Show. The Governor was there, 35-40 delegates from Coastal Alabama, Mobile and 

Baldwin Counties, about 78-85 from the state.  The state was well represented.  There was a lot of good 

dialogue.  The biggest issue seen in the press is tempering expectation for the time lines.  The supply 

chain is continuing to be solidified.  There were a couple of announcements during the Air Show 

regarding some components or content on the A-320.  There have been some companies that have an 

Alabama presence that have already been awarded some content.  There was very good dialogue.  They 

are very interested, and have been hearing good reports on the Alabama workforce.  They are very 

pleased with the state’s workforce training.  There were representatives from the academia field as well.  

The states post-secondary two year college Chancellor was there, as well as, the major universities.  

There was an announcement as well from GKN Aerospace that has a facility in Tallassee about a new 

engineering workforce development office where they are going to be training up to 50 engineers.  

Those who have done business in Alabama are touting Alabama as being well received.  The business 

case he would estimate probably 18-24 months out before these companies start making decisions on 

locating.  Air Bus is on pace to open their facility in 2015 and have planes rolling off in 2016.  They 

have a 2,500 plane backlog, and they can only produce 42 planes a month right now so that equates to a 

six (6) year backlog.  There will be plenty of activity in the years to come.  The cross-section of elected 

officials combined with economic developers and the academic institutions is very valued by corporate 

leadership.  We may take for granted how we do business and the approach we take, but they do not 

always receive such a well-rounded group that interacts and promotes the state and wants the businesses 

to succeed.  That is very valued and he thinks the city will reap many benefits from that in the years to 

come. 

 

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 7



AUGUST 4, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e5
 

 

C.   Department Head Comments 

Vickie Hinman – Human Resources Director – mentioned to council that she had put an orange folder 

on their desks for the Special Called council meeting tomorrow. 

 

Margaret Thigpen Civic Center Director – reported that Taste of the Eastern Shore is Friday August 

22
nd

, and they have 19 vendors as of now and have sold 436 tickets. 

 

     D.  City Clerk Report – Rebecca A. Hayes 

      a.)  Parade Permit / Lupus Foundation / 5K Fund Raiser / March 21, 2015 
       

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to approve the Parade Permit / Lupus Foundation / 5K 

Fund Raiser / March 21, 2015.  Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

      b.)  MOTION:  Change September 1, 2014 Council meeting due to that day being        

                                Labor Day 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to reschedule the September 1, 2014 council meeting to 

Tuesday, September 2, 2014.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

7.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Mr. Rod Drummond – Ridgewood Drive – spoke regarding algae and reeds taking over at Bayfront 

Park. The reeds are four to five feet high.  He said it is a disgrace to let it get that way. 

 

Mr. Steve Kingsmore – Loxley – spoke in favor of e-cigarettes. 

 

8.    RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

         

        RESOLUTIONS: 
a.)   Supporting Interchange Improvements to the Interstate  

        10 Interchange at State Route 181. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2014-42 

 

b.)    Acceptance of Streets & Drainage / Located in TimberCreek 

         Subdivision, Phase 11 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2014-43 

 

c.)    Requesting an Attorney General’s Opinion  / Operating  

        Bicycles on Public Roads and Sidewalks Under Title 32 of Al Law. . . . . . . /Resolution 2014-44 

 

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 8



AUGUST 4, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e6
 

 

d.)   Revision of City of Daphne Street Map  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2014-45 

 

e.)   Authorize the Mayor to have Proceedings and Offering Document 

       Prepared with Respect to the Series 2014 Warrants. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2014-46 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Resolutions 2014-42; 2014-43; 2014-44 

2014-45 and 2014-46.  Seconded by Councilman  LeJeune. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2014-42.   Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2014-43.  Seconded by Councilman Davis. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2014-44.  Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2014-45.  Seconded by Councilwoman 

Conaway. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2014-46.  Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

AYE    Conaway, Rudicell, Lake, Scott, LeJeune, Fry                              NAY    Davis 

 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

 

 

 

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 9



AUGUST 4, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e7
 

 

ORDINANCES: 

 

 2
ND

  READ          
a.)   Appropriating Funds:  Edgar Circle / Melanie Loop Emergency 

        Repairs Drainage Repairs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2014-30 

 

b.)    Appropriating Funds: Daphne Sports Complex Parking Lot. . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2014-31 

 
 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to waive the reading of Ordinances 2014-30 and 2014-

31.  Seconded by Councilman Lake.            

 

                                                MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to adopt Ordinance 2014-30.  Seconded by Councilman 

Lake. 
 

                                                MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to adopt Ordinance 2014-31.  Seconded by Councilman 

Lake. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

       1
ST

 READ 
a.)    Appropriation of Funds:  Mast Arm Poles & Signal Upgrade / 

         Johnson Road and US Hwy 98 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-32 

 

b.)    Pre-zone: Property Located Northwest of the Intersection of 

        County Roads 13 & 64 /Baldwin County District 15 to B-2,  

        General Business, City of Daphne. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-33 

 

c.)    Annexation: Property Located Northwest of the Intersection  

        of County Roads 13 & 64. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-34 

          

d.)   Repealing & Replacing Ordinance 2008-19 / Protecting the Air 

        Quality in the City of Daphne. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2014-35 
 

ORDINANCES 2014-32,  2014-33, 2014-34 AND 2014-35 WERE 1
ST

 READ 
 

 

 

 

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 10



AUGUST 4, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e8
 

 

 

9.    COUNCIL COMMENTS 

Mayor Haygood  hopes that everyone will support the Taste of the Eastern Shore. He reminded everyone that 

school will be starting soon. Mayor Haygood  reported that Baldwin County School Superintendent Allen Lee has 

resigned, and he will be leaving in November. 

 

Councilman Lake commented on the e-cigarette issue saying he has asthma and they do not bother him.  

 

Councilman LeJeune commented on the City of Fairhope’s five year plan for Volanta Park and said 

that the city needs to make sure they moving ahead in improving Daphne’s recreation facilities. 

 

Councilman Davis encouraged everyone to keep an eye out for the Public Hearings regarding the I-10 

bridge project.  There is one September 23
rd

 in Baldwin County.  He said it is important to hear the pros 

and cons of the project. 

 

Council President Fry thanked Mr. Einfeld for coming out and he looks forward to working with him. 

 

10.   ADJOURN: 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman Rudicell. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING ADJOURNED AT 

7:28 P.M. 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,                                  Certification of Presiding Officer 

                               

                                        

__________________________________   _____________________________   

Rebecca A. Hayes,     Randy Fry,     

City Clerk      Council President 

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 11



AUGUST 5, 2014 

SPECIAL CALLED CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

5:30 P.M. 

 
1.  CALL TO ORDER 

There being a quorum present Council President Fry called the meeting to order at 5:35 p.m.  

 

 2.  ROLL CALL 
 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron Scott 

Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis. 

 

Also present:  Mayor Haygood; Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Jay Ross, Attorney; Scott Hetrick, City Attorney; 

Vickie Hinman, Human Resources Director; David Carpenter, Police Chief; Lt. Judd Beedy, Police 

Department; Corporal Jason Vanoy, Police Department; Sergeant Brian Gulsby, Police Department; Danny 

Bell; Buzz Jordan, Attorney for Danny Bell.  

 

Personnel Hearing 
 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to enter into Executive Session for a Quasi-Judicial Hearing to deal with a 

personnel grievance, and the meeting will last for three (3) hours.   Seconded by Councilman Lake.  

 

The City Attorney certified that the stated reason is acceptable according to the Alabama Open Meetings Act. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 
Conaway  Aye    LeJeune  Aye 

Rudicell  Aye    Davis   Aye 

Lake   Aye    Fry   Aye 

Scott   Aye 

 

                                                                MOTION CARRIED  
 

Council entered into Executive Session at 5:40 p.m. 

 

Council returned from Executive Session at 9:12 p.m. 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to uphold the Mayors actions in the termination of Danny Bell.  Seconded by 

Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED                MOTION CARRIED 
 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

 

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 12



AUGUST 5, 2014 

SPECIAL CALLED CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               

DAPHNE, AL 

5:30 PM 
 

 2 

 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 9:17 p.m. 
 

 

Respectfully submitted by,           Certification of Presiding Officer:                                               

                                                     

      
__________________________          ________________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk    Randy Fry, Council President    

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 13



AUGUST 7, 2014 

SPECIAL CALLED CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

5:30 P.M. 

 

 
1.  CALL TO ORDER 

There being a quorum present Council President Fry called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.  

 

 2.  ROLL CALL 
 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron Scott 

Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis. 

 

Also present:  Mayor Haygood; Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Jay Ross, Attorney; Scott Hetrick, City Attorney; 

Vickie Hinman, Human Resources Director; Christine Ciancetta, Deputy Finance Director; Mike Hinson; 

Smith Prestwood, Attorney for Mike Hinson. 

 

Personnel Hearing 
 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to enter into Executive Session for a Quasi-Judicial Hearing to deal with a 

personnel grievance, and the meeting will last for three (3) hours.   Seconded by Councilman LeJeune.  

 

The City Attorney certified that the stated reason is acceptable according to the Alabama Open Meetings Act. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 
Conaway  Aye    LeJeune  Aye 

Rudicell  Aye    Davis   Aye 

Lake   Aye    Fry   Aye 

Scott   Aye 

 

                                                                MOTION CARRIED  
 

Council entered into Executive Session at 5:35 p.m. 

 

The City Attorney reported that the Executive Session will last for another three (3) hours. 

 

Council returned from Executive Session at 10:55 p.m. 

 

Council did not reach a decision regarding the personnel grievance.  They will make a decision at the August 

18, 2014 council meeting. 

 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Davis to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman Rudicell. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

 

 

 

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 14



AUGUST 7, 2014 

SPECIAL CALLED CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               

DAPHNE, AL 

5:30 PM 
 

 2 

 

 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 10:56 p.m. 
 

 

Respectfully submitted by,           Certification of Presiding Officer:                                               

                                                     

      
__________________________          ________________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk    Randy Fry, Council President    

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 15



AUGUST 11, 2014 

EMERGENCY SPECIAL CALLED 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

5:30 P.M. 

 
1.  CALL TO ORDER 

There being a quorum present Council President Fry called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  

 

 2.  ROLL CALL 
 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron Scott 

Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis. 

 

Also present:  Mayor Haygood; Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Jay Ross, Attorney; David McKelroy, Recreation 

Director; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; Charlie McDavid, Recreation Department, Scott 

Hutchinson, HMR. 

 

1.  NRCS EMERGENCY WATERSHED PROTECTION FUNDS 

 

Resolution 2014-48 / Authorizing Action for Emergency Watershed Protection - NRCS 
 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake  to waive the reading Resolution 2014-48.   Seconded by Councilman 

Scott.  

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adopt Resolution 2014-48.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

Ordinance 2014-36Appropriating Funds:  Emergency Watershed Protection on Private Property: 

Maize’s Gulch & Palmetto Court (Creekside) 

 

MOTION  BY Councilman Lake to suspend the rules to consider Ordinance 2014-36.  Seconded by 

Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 
Conaway  Aye     LeJeune  Aye 

Rudicell  Aye     Davis   Aye 

Lake   Aye     Fry   Aye 

Scott   Aye 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to waive the reading of Ordinance 2014-36.  Seconded by Councilwoman 

Conaway. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 16



AUGUST 11, 2014 

EMERGENCY SPECIAL CALLED 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

5:30 P.M. 

 

 2 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adopt Ordinance 2014-36.  Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

Councilman Scott said for the record that this issue was fully vetted at the Finance Committee meeting right 

before the Council meeting. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

MOTION B Y Councilman Scott to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 6:40 p.m. 
 

 

Respectfully submitted by,           Certification of Presiding Officer:                                               

                                                     

      
__________________________          ________________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk    Randy Fry, Council President    

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 17



AUGUST 11, 2014 
CITY COUNCILWORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

 

P
ag

e1
 

   
COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Tommie Conaway Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron 

Scott; Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis. 

 

Also present: Mayor Dane Haygood; Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Jay Ross, City Attorney; David 

McKelroy, Recreation Director; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; Charlie McDavid, Recreation 

Department.  

 

Council President Fry called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

 

1.  RECREATION FACILITIES / NEXT STEP  
Council discussed other property for the recreation facilities.  Councilman LeJeune said the property by 

the high school was not on the market anymore.  Council discussed different locations.  He said that the 

Recreation Board was leaning toward the Park Drive property.  He suggested that the board give the plan 

and let council decide location and money.  Hatch Mott McDonald in their quote estimated the plans 

would take about 80 acres. 

 

Council discussed sending out an RFP to a lot of different engineering firms to get a variety of plans.   

 

Council also discussed financing.  $12-$13 million was mentioned as an amount needed to do the 

improvements.   

 

Consensus of Council was to draft an RFP to send out to engineering firms. 

 

1. ANYTHING ELSE DEEMED NECESSARY  

The City Attorney said he needed to meet with council in an Executive Session to discuss the potential 

buying and selling of real property. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adjourn into Executive Session to discuss the potential 

buying and selling of real property. The session will take 10 minutes.  Seconded by 

Councilman Davis. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 
Conaway  Aye    LeJeune  Aye 

Rudicell  Aye    Davis   Aye 

Lake   Aye    Fry   Aye 

Scott   Aye 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 18



AUGUST 11, 2014 
CITY COUNCILWORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e2
 

 

8.  ADJOURN 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 7:30 p.m. 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,         Certification of Presiding Officer:  

                                                     

                               

___________________________         _____________________________                                                                                  

Rebecca A. Hayes          Randy Fry 

City Clerk                                                            Council President                                       

        

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 19



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

STANDING COMMITTEES 

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 20



CITY OF DAPHNE 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 
AUGUST 11, 2014 

4:00 P.M. 
 
I.      CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
The meeting was called to order at  4:00p.m.  Present were Chairperson Mrs. Conaway, Councilman Joseph 
Davis, Councilman Ron Scott , Councilman John Lake, Senior Accountant Suzânne Henson, and Accounting 
Technician Sue Moody. 
 
Also in attendance were Councilman Pat Rudicell, Councilman Robin LeJeune, Council President Randy Fry, 
Public Works Director Richard Johnson, Human Resource Director Vickie Hinman, Civic Center Director 
Margaret Thigpen, Recreation Director David McKelroy and Fire Chief James White. 
 
 
I.      PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 

A. YMCA appropriation Request – Mr. Brian Tomlinson 
Mr. Tomlinson presented handouts and reviewed the YMCA programs including the Summer Camp activities. 
Mr. Tomlinson reviewed that the YMCA served 3,000 member units which included individual memberships and 
family memberships.   Mr. Tomlinson stated the YMCA had set a goal of raising $46,000 and had raised 
$31,000 toward this goal.  Mr. Tomlinson stated the YMCA was requesting $1,500 from the City to support their 
campaign.  Mr. Scott asked if they had submitted a City grant contribution application for the FY2015 Budget.  
Mr. Tomlinson answered they had but they were asking for the $1,500 from the FY2014 Budget. 
(FY2014 available Community Contribution funds - $2,500 ) 
 
Chief White asked Mr. Tomlinson if he would see if the YMCA could offer a Wellness membership plan for the 
Fire Department employees.  Chief White stated that the City had previously had a plan with the YMCA but the 
membership cost became too high for the City to participate at that time.  Chief White said the FD employees 
are currently attending another gym but the YMCA is centrally located between the Fire Stations so he wanted 
to check with them again to see what the cost would be. 
 
 
III.    HUMAN RESOURCES BUSINESS 
 
       A.  Update on Human Resources Department Activity 
       
Mrs. Vickie Hinman reviewed the Human Resource Report including open position status. 
Positions      Status 
Revenue Officer     Interviewing 
Recreation Program Coordinator   Pre-employment, background 
Deputy Finance Director                Reviewing Applications 
Finance Director     Reviewing Applications 
PT Dispatcher      Reviewing Applications 
Events Assistant (Civic Center)               DOH: 07/17/2014 
Corrections Officer     DOH: 08/21/2014 
Police Department Intern    DOH: 8/4/2014    
Children’s Librarian     Posted – Closes 8/11/2014 
Library Computer Services Technician              Pending 
 
Mrs. Hinman stated the Revenue Officer is bondable so HR will begin the reference check.  Mrs. Hinman 
discussed the Deputy Finance Director and Finance Director positions are still being reviewed.  The Finance 
Director position was advertised a second time with twelve (12) being received.  Mr. Scott asked what salary 
STEP range can the Mayor offer a new employee.  Mrs. Hinman answered up to a step 12 and Council can 
approve up to step 16.  Mr. Davis discussed the possibility of some of the Council volunteering to assisting with 
the interview process.  Discussion continued on Council’s assistance in the process as related to the Treasurer 
position. 

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 21



Finance Minutes.doc  2  

 
Mrs. Jones stated that the GIS technician last day would be this Friday, August 15, 2014.  Mrs. Jones stated she 
had talked to the Mayor and he approved for her to submit a change in the FY2015 Budget for this position to 
transition to a Planner position which would still encompass the GIS duties. Mrs. Jones said she would be 
submitting this information with the FY2015 proposed budget but she wanted to give the Finance Committee 
advance information so they would be familiar with the request. 
 
Mrs. Hinman reviewed the Safety Committee meeting that was held on July 30, 2014.  The Committee 
Reviewed reports of City employee injuries and property damages for previous month.  Fire Marshall reported of 
City buildings safety inspections, plan of action for each inspection and follow-up as needed.  Safety awards 
eligibility to be determined and sent out in August.  Employee Safety Committee will continue to review and 
revise Safety Handbook to ensure safety policies are consistent with Employee Handbook Policies. Next Safety 
Committee meeting on August 27, 2014 at 10:00 a.m. 
 
Mr. Davis ask if the Safety meeting information/minutes could be forwarded to the Buildings & Property 
Committee meeting so related issues could be addressed at that meeting as needed. 
 
HR projects/meetings: 

 Grievance hearings August 4 and August 6, 2014 
 Employee Benefits/Wellness Fair date is August 13, 2014 
 HR Assistant cross training on payroll and benefits 
 Hosting Baldwin County SHRM monthly meeting Aug. 21, 2014 

 
Mrs. Hinman invited all the Committee members and employees to attend the Employee Benefits/Wellness Fair 
this coming Wednesday, August 13, 2014 and gave the committee members a handout showing the Fair’s 
activities and schedule.  Mrs. Hinman noted the City employees are asked to support the Prodisee Pantry 
organization at the Fair by bringing a non-perishable food item, baby items, or listed toiletries. 
 
Mrs. Hinman stated she wanted to recognize Mrs. Tracey Miller, Solid Waste Coordinator for her part in 
obtaining several different Recycling Grants for the City including an individual Recycle of the Year Award.  Mr. 
Johnson discussed the awarded grant from American Broadcasting/TV Commercial “Recycle Works for Me”  
would advertise Daphne’s recycle program and noted that this is the third year in a row that the City was 
awarded a $36,000 grant for recycling related equipment. (A list of awarded Grants is included in the packet). 
 

IV. CURRENT BUSINESS 
 

A.  Financial Reports 

 
1. Treasurer’s Report:  July, 2014 

 
    Mrs. Henson reviewed the Treasurer’s Report and noted:  

 Total Unrestricted Funds - $9,677,463                   
 Increase from Last Year’s Unrestricted Funds - $776,089      
 # of months of Unrestricted cash to cover monthly operating Expenses & Debt Service – 4.4 months 

compared to the previous year – 4.2  months 
Included in the packet are graphs that show that activity is on track with the previous year. 
      
Mrs. Henson noted that the Credit Card Account was closed in July according to adopted Ordinance 2014-21 
and the balance of $137 was transferred back into the City’s MMA account.  Discussion continued that this 
account was opened for online donations to the Animal Shelter and the Library but no donations were made 
during the two years the account was opened.  Mrs. Henson noted that the account was incurring $40/month in 
fees and cost $1,970 in set up cost.  Discussion was made on the Renaissance Center and an update on sewer 
assessment payments was requested.  
 
      .   
The Treasurer’s Report as of July 31, 2014 Total Unrestricted Funds - $9,677,463             
and Total City Funds - $15,632,512 was presented to be filed for audit.  
 

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 22



Finance Minutes.doc  3  

2.  Sales and Use Taxes: June, 2014 
 

Mrs. Henson reviewed the Sales & Use Tax Reports and Graphs: $1,202,126.66 was collected for June 2014: 
 YTD Variance over Budget - $109,350    
 Percent change from last year’s collections   +9.5 %  

 
 

3.  Lodging Tax Collections,  June, 2014 

 
Mrs. Henson reviewed the Lodging Tax Collections Report and noted the collections for June 2014 were 
$127,920.37 which is up $54,156.77  from June’s 2013’s collections of $71,090.69.  

 YTD Variance over Budget:    $134,902.43 
 Percentage change from last year’s collections:  +44.4 % 

 
Discussion was made that the Lodging Tax collections were up due to the rate increase effective April 1, 2014. 
Mr. Davis handed out a copy of an article he had read on what percentage different cities charge for Lodging 
Tax.  Mr. Davis stated that Birmingham and Mobile, AL were among the highest charging 17%.  Discussion 
continued that Daphne’s rate is still lower than most cities. 
 
 4.  Lodging Tax Fund : Statement of Rev over Exp, June 30,2014 (draft/Unreconciled) 
 
Mrs. Henson reviewed the Lodging Tax Statement which listed a comparison of previous years, which is audited 
information and the next to last column list the “Unreconciled Balance as of 7/31/14 (noting month is not closed).  
Mrs. Henson noted although the July is not a closed month she did not expect there to be much change in these 
amounts. Mrs. Henson noted that the accountant Mrs. Donna Page has done the initial reconciliation for this 
fund and has updated the statement for FY14’s activity. Mrs. Henson noted that there had been discussion 
concerning the lodging tax over the last several meetings and since the Debt forgiveness ordinance was 
adopted by Council she wanted to present an updated statement for the Lodging Tax Fund.  Mrs. Henson noted 
there is a small amount of $5,216 for pending projects that are most likely complete so that may can be 
removed.  Mrs. Henson noted that (unreconciled) collections to date for Recreation equipment is $117,537.97 
and Bayfront related collections balance is $1,867,216.90. 
 

5.  Reserve for Encumbrances, as of June 
 
Mrs. Henson reviewed the encumbrance spreadsheet as of 6/30/14.  Mrs. Henson noted this report was 
included because there was a question of what monies were available for the Library roof repair at the Buildings 
& Property meeting this month.  Discussion continued that Council generally reviews the encumbrance list 
during the budget adoption process to see if any items need to be removed. 
 

6. Report: New Business Licenses – July, 2014    
  
The Business Licenses Report was included in the packet. Total business license issued YTD is 3,884 -  up 35 
from last year 
 
107 - Total Business License issued in July  -  up 22 from July 2013 (85 licenses issued).   
 44   - Renewals out of 107 license issued this month 
 45   - New businesses with 4 of those having a physical location in Daphne and 
 18   - Prior year licenses.  A map was included showing each of the 4 new businesses locations.  
 
Mrs. Henson presented the Business License Report and noted a map with the physical locations in Daphne.   
Mrs. Henson stated that Mrs. Phillips had really went over and above by continuing to assist in the Revenue 
Department after starting a new job outside the City.  Mrs. Phillips has continued to assist with the closing of the 
month’s revenue collections and report preparation which is required in order for Mrs. Page to reconcile the 
revenue accounts for preparation of the financial reports. 
 

7.  Bills Paid Reports –  July, 2014 
 
The Bills Paid Report was presented in the packet.  Discussion was made on several paid items including Legal 
fees, Carquest Auto Part, Visa, and others.  Discussion was made on Legal Fees and if West Minister Village 

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 23



Finance Minutes.doc  4  

had reimbursed the City for expenses incurred as related to their debt reduction.  Mrs. Henson noted she would 
check on the reimbursement (reimbursement check for $2,690.33 received 7-16-14)  Clarks Temporary 
Services was discussed and Mr. Scott stated that Mrs. Dawne Biggs who is a Clark temporary worker and assist 
at the front desk does an excellent job.  Mrs. Henson stated she also assist in Finance and agreed she has 
been a real asset to the City. Mrs. Henson noted that the Lodging Tax allocation to Downtown Redevelopment 
and Industrial Development Board’s payments for the months January – June 2014 is listed in the Bills Paid 
report.  Mrs. Henson noted that Mrs. Page reconciled the Lodging Tax allocations and prepared those 
payments.  Discussion continued on the Finance staff and Mrs. Henson noted that Mrs. Page also prepares the 
Treasurer’s Report and Bills Paid Report as well as reconciles Sales Tax for preparation of that report for the 
Finance packet.  .  Mrs. Henson stated that Mrs. Page reconciles ½ the revenue accounts and funds with Mrs. 
Lisa White reconciling the remaining ½ accounts and funds but the reports that are presented in the Finance 
packet are predominantly the accounts that Mrs. Page reconciles.  Mrs. Henson noted Mrs. Page has 
announced she will be retiring around the end of this year. 
 

A. Appropriation Request: (Ordinance) 
 

1. Mazie’s Gulch & Palmetto Court (Creekside) -  $19,956 (Sponsor Match) - 
Emergency Watershed Protection (EWP) program project for repair: private 
property watershed issues: (Total- $79,824: NRCS-75%- $59,868/ City 25% - 
$19,956) 
 

Mr. Johnson reviewed the appropriation request in the amount of $19,956 for the Mazie’s Gulch & Palmetto 
Court projects and the NRCS/EWP reimbursement. Mr. Johnson also discussed the Resolution for Mazie’s 
Gulch (2 locations) and Piedmont Circle (Lake Forest) allowing the City to meet the 20 day timeline required for 
reimbursement and noted the Resolution will be discussed at the Special Council Meeting following the Finance 
Meeting. Mr. Johnson noted these projects require no cash match- 100% of the City’s match should be 
accomplished through  “in kind” services. 
 
Motion by Mr. Scott to appropriate  $19,956 from General Fund  for Mazie’s Gulch  
Palmetto Court (Creekside) NRCS/EWP project  -  25% share.  Seconded by Mr. Lake.  
Motion carried. 
 
 
Motion by Mr. Davis to adopt a Resolution authorizing the City to coordinate all 
application processes with NRCS for reimbursement of all funds for Mazie’s Gulch & 
Piedmont Circle NRCS/EWP project  with 100% match accomplished through “in kind” 
services.  Seconded by Mr. Lake.  Motion carried. 
 

 
2. Lamar & Willett White property(104 Gordon Circle):  FEMA National Flood 

Insurance Program Buyout – City sponsorship - $ 
 

Mr. Davis reviewed the discussion on the project from the Buildings and Property Meeting and noted that there 
were two other pieces of property listed in the letter from the Whites:  Wooster & Kipling.  Mr. Davis state the 
difference is the City did issue a permit for these two properties to be built below the flood level but the White 
property was approved for permit at 1 ½’ -2” above the approved flood level so that makes this property different 
from the other two listed in the letter.  Discussion continued that the appraisal showed the property value of 
$150,000 and FEMA would pay 75% of  a  “FEMA” approved market value.  Mr. Davis stated that 25% of the 
$150,000 would be $37,500.  Mrs. Henson noted that Mr. Richard Merchant, Building Official and Mrs. Ashley 
Campbell, Site Containment Manager included three options for potential City sponsorship for Council’s review:  
A) Full Match - $37,500, B) Demo Only – estimated $10,000 to demolish the home, and C) Match determined by 
Council.  Mr. Johnson discussed demolition of the home.  Discussion continued that the Whites were planning to 
speak during public participation at the August 18, 2014 and Council could consider the level of participation at 
that time. 
 
 
 

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 24



Finance Minutes.doc  5  

 
3. Library Roof Repairs - $11,000 

 
Mr. Johnson noted monies would be available from the Facilities Repair appropriation ($35,000) approved 
through Ordinance 2014-13. 
 

 
 

B. Bids: (Resolution) 
1.  2014-Q-PORTABLE RESTROOM  

 
Mrs. Henson noted that no bids were received for the Portable Restroom bid and by State bid law the City could 
negotiate a contract for the purchase of the restroom.  Mr. McKelroy stated he had obtained two quotes and 
recommended awarding the negotiated bid to Jag Mobile Solutions.  Mr. McKelroy stated that the City of 
Fairhope had been using the same unit he was recommending for four years and it is still in very good condition.  
Mr. McKelroy stated the unit will be based at Lott Park where the 5-6 year old teams play ball so they will not 
have to travel so far to the restroom but the unit can be moved to City Hall for usage during events and other 
locations as needed for City sponsored events.  Mrs. Henson noted the budget includes $45,000 for the 
purchase of this unit. (Total negotiated bid: $44,970 ($42,940 + $2,030 shipping)) 
 
Motion by Mr. Davis to recommend to Council to award the negotiated 2014-Q-
PORTABLE RESTROOM  in the amount of $44,970 ($42,940 + $2,030 shipping) as bid to Jag 

Mobile Solutions.  Seconded by Mr. Lake.  Motion carried. 
 
 
V. OLD BUSINESS 
 

1. Civic Center Phones  
 
Mr. Margaret Thigpen discussed the main phone line has been down for several days at the Civic Center and is 
in the process of being repaired.  Mr. McKelroy noted the Recreation department also has a line down. 
 
VI. ADJOURN   The meeting adjourned at 5:57 p.m.  
 

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 25



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 26



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 27



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 28



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 29



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 30



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 31



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 32



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 33



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 34



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 35



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 36



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 37



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 38



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 39



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 40



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 41



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 42



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 43



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 44



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 45



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 46



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 47



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 48



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 49



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 50



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 51



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 52



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 53



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 54



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 55



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 56



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 57



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 58



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 59



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 60



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 61



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 62



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 63



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 64



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 65



Buildings & Property Committee Meeting 

Monday, August 4, 2014 

5:30 PM 

Daphne City Hall- Executive Conference Room 

 

Committee Minutes 

Present: Councilman Joe Davis; Councilman Randy Fry; Councilman Pat Rudicell; Margaret 

Thigpen, Civic Center Director; Sarah Toulson, Assistant City Clerk (Recording Secretary); 

Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; Richard Merchant, Building Official; Frank Barnett, 

Maintenance Supervisor; David McKelroy, Parks and Recreation Director; Suzanne Henson, 

Senior Accountant; Selena Vaughn, Village Point Foundation; Lamar and Willet White; Mayor 

Dane Haygood; Councilman Robin Lejeune 

Absent: Rick Whitehead 

The meeting brought to order at 5:25 pm by Chairman Joe Davis. 

1. Public Participation 

 

Chairman Davis amended the agenda to allow Selena Vaughn and Lamar and Willet White to 

address the committee under Public Participation. 

 

Selena Vaughn updated the committee regarding Village Point Foundation and Bayfront 

property activities.  She reported that the Foundation was still working with an architect to 

finish plans for Village Point Park Preserve.  She expressed the desire to working with Richard 

Johnson in the meantime to choose trash receptacles and benches for placement at the park. 

 

Second, Ms. Vaughn reported that she and Mr. Johnson were still working on obtaining a 

lightning rod for Jackson’s Oak.  Mr. Johnson stated that he would follow up for the next 

Committee meeting. 

 

Lastly, Ms. Vaughn expressed the need to have a quality trails map for the preserve, and 

eventually for all of the City parks created, showing locations for restrooms and picnic tables, 

and length and difficulty of various trails. 

 

Mr. and Mrs. White  addressed the committee as an update to the property located at 103 

Gordon Loop.   

 

The committee reviewed the submitted property appraisal.  

 

Robin Lejeune arrived at 5:36 pm. 

 Richard Merchant pointed out that for the Whites to submit their application, the City would be 

required to sponsor, but would not be required to provide any part of the 25 percent match for 

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 66



the buyout.  He added that the demolition of the property by City employees could be an in-kind 

part of the match if chosen.   

 

Mayor Dane Haygood arrived at 5:43 pm 

 

The Committee then discussed various approaches to handling the 25 percent match, ranging 

from only providing demolition services to providing the demolition services plus a cash amount 

for the remainder of the match. 

 

Motion by Mr. Fry to consider giving assistance to Lamar and Willet White in recovering 75 

percent of the value of their home from FEMA, to include consideration of contributing an 

amount not to exceed between $14,000 and $20,000 plus demolition costs.  Seconded by 

Mr. Rudicell.  Motion carried unanimously.  

 

2. Approval of Minutes: July 7, 2014 

 

Mr. Merchant requested the minutes be amended under Public Participation as follows: 

 

“The sponsorship would require the city to provide a 25 percent match, which could be provided 

by either the City or the applicant, with FEMA to buy out the property and use it for green 

space.” 

 

Motion by Mr. Fry to adopt the July 7, 2014 minutes as amended.  Seconded by Mr. 

Rudicell.  Motion carried unanimously.  

 

3. Civic Center & Bayfront report (July): Margaret Thigpen  

 

Margaret Thigpen distributed and discussed her July report.  July 2014 revenue totaled 

$12,252.00, an increase from July 2013 levels.  Year to Date revenues stood at $168,451.50, 

above figures listed for FY2013.  Additionally, Ms. Thigpen reported total deposits for July stood 

at $6,211.50, and that the Civic Center has seen 10 events during July, for a total of 10 days used, 

not including setup days. 

 

Ms. Thigpen then turned to Bayfront Pavilion, reporting revenues for July totaling $8,777.00, 

above July 2013 levels, and year-to-date revenues totaling $71,092.00, an increase from 2013 

numbers.  Additionally, Ms. Thigpen reported total deposits for July stood at $6,060.00, and 

that Bayfront Pavilion has seen 11 events during July, for a total of 13 days used, not including 

setup days. 

 

Ms. Thigpen listed a number of recently passed and upcoming events scheduled at the Civic 

Center which are listed on her report herein.   

 

In addition, she updated the Committee on the following: 

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 67



 Ms. Thigpen provided graphs requested by Mayor Haygood depicting revenue levels for 

the Civic Center and Bayfront Pavilion. 

 She updated the committee regarding the Chiller for the Civic Center, stating the Chiller 

was installed and working properly. 

 The roof repairs are underway. 

 Ms. Thigpen is currently researching Hurricane/natural disaster policies for facilities.  

There is a need for a document to hand clients regarding natural disasters and 

cancellations.  She plans to have something to show by the next Committee meeting. 

 

4. Building inspection monthly reports (July):  Richard Merchant 

 

Mr. Richard Merchant reviewed the building report for the month of July.  He reported 20 new 

residential construction projects initiated, and no new commercial development.  The 

department issued 155 permits during July, with a total job cost of $6,460,623.56 with permit 

fees totaling $49,402.12.   

 

5. Resolutions for Surplus Property 

 

Ms. Suzanne Henson presented one resolution for surplus property, which is contained in 

the packet herein.  She passed out an updated copy of the Resolution, which is also 

contained with the packet herein. 

 

Motion by Mr. Fry to recommend the Resolution for Surplus Property for adoption by the City 

Council.  Seconded by Mr. Rudicell.  Motion carried unanimously.  

 

6. Insurance Oversight: 

 

Mayor Haygood updated the committee, stating that the issue was now being handled by the 

City Attorney. 

 

7. Clarification of Gator Alley signage 

 

No action taken by Committee.  General discussion was had regarding Daphne’s “Gator Alley” 

signage.  The owner of “Alligator Alley,” a separate business outside of Daphne, asked the City to 

consider changing the name of Gator Alley for clarification purposes. 

 

8. Library Roof Repairs 

 

Mr. Frank Barnett reported that the Library roof was eighteen years old, with some roof drains 

beginning to leak.   

 

Motion by Mr. Fry to recommend to the Council to appropriate $11,000 for the repair of the 

Library roof.  Seconded by Mr. Rudicell.  Motion carried unanimously.  

 

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 68



9. Other Business 

 

Councilman Fry mentioned that the dog park should have signage on Whispering Pines Road to 

alert more visitors to the existence of the park.  

 

With no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 6:25, motion by 

Mr. Rudicell and seconded by Mr. Fry. 

 

 

 

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 69



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 70



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 71



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 72



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 73



AUGUST 13, 2014       CODE ENFORCEMENT / ORDINANCE COMMITTEE               Page 1 
 

Code Enforcement / Ordinance Committee 
    Wednesday, August 13, 2014 

1705 Main Street 

Daphne, AL 

Executive Conference Room 

5:30 p.m. 

                                                                               

                                                                                   

Councilman Ron Scott, Chairman                                                       Councilman Pat Rudicell                                                           

Councilman Robin LeJeune                                                                Councilman Randy Fry 

 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL: 

 There being a quorum present Councilman Scott called the meeting to order at 5:15 p.m. 

 

 MEMBERS PRESENT:  Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune; Pat Rudicell.   

 

Absent: Randy Fry.  

 

Also present:  Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk, recording secretary; Councilwoman Conaway; 

Councilman Joe Davis. 

 

II.  APPROVE MINUTES / July 11, 2014 

There were no corrections to the July 11, 2014 minutes, and stand approved as written. 

 

III. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
No one spoke. 

 

IV.      ORDINANCE REVIEW  

1. Amending Ordinances 2013-21 Council Rules of Procedure.  

a.)  Amendment:  Setting committee and board agendas 

 

The committee made the following recommendations to amend Section XVIII: 

ADD: 

a.) Council may voluntarily serve on any committee or board with a minimum of three 

b.) Council President  shall not chair a committee or board 

c.) Chairman of committee or board is selected by members of the committee or board 

d.) No councilmember shall chair more than one (1) committee or board 

e.) Committee meeting agenda shall be set by the committee chairman along with the 

department head associated with the committee 

f.) The Mayor may add any item to any committee or board agenda with notification of the 

committee or board chairman 

g.) The Mayor may not delete any committee or board agenda item without approval from 

committee or board chairman 

h.) Committee or board meetings shall not go more than 90 minutes unless it a special called 

meeting 

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 74



AUGUST 13, 2014       CODE ENFORCEMENT / ORDINANCE COMMITTEE               Page 2 
 

 

Amend Section V: 

Move Public Participation down after Report of Officers and before Resolutions, Ordinances and 

Other Business. 

 

Amendments to the ordinance will be presented at the September meeting for review. 

 

V.     OTHER BUSINESS 
The committee discussed combining some committees and having them on the same Monday. 

Example:  Buildings and Property and Public Works on the same Monday, which ever they 

choose, and then moving Public Safety and Ordinance Committees to the Monday vacated. 

 

 

VIII.   NEXT MEETING 
The next meeting will be September 10, 2014 

 

IX.   ADJOURN 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 6:05 p.m.  

 

 

Respectfully submitted 

 

 

 

Rebecca A. Hayes,   

Recording Secretary 
  

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 75



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

SPECIAL BOARDS 

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 76



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 77



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 78



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 79



 
 

CITY OF DAPHNE  

BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT AGENDA 

AUGUST 7, 2014 - 3:00 P.M.  

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER – 3:00 p.m. 

 

2. CALL OF ROLL – Present W. Robison, B. Mayhand, F. Lamb, P. Durant, L. 
Cooke, W. Scully 

 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - Approved 

  

 June 5, 2014   

  

4. OLD BUSINESS 

 

5. NEW BUSINESS – Upheld Appeal #1997-20Interpretation of Special Exception 

for Medical Facility & Denied Secondary Special Exception request for non-

medical professional office   

 

Appeal #2014-08 101 Villa Dr LLC 

 
A request to the City of Daphne Board of Zoning Adjustment 

has been filed for an interpretation of “Special Exception 

Variance” approved in Appeal #1997-20 in 1997, particularly 

in regard to the types of offices permitted in the 

Administrative Buildings. A second request, if granted, 

proposes to permit non-medical, professional-type offices 

to operate in the Administrative Buildings in addition to 

medical offices permitted by Appeal #1997-20. The property 

is 101 Villa Drive, which is zoned R-1, Low Density Single 

Family Residential. 

 
6. ADJOURNMENT – 4:50 p.m. 

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 80



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

OFFICERS 

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 81



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 82



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 83



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 84



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 85



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 86



 

 

 

RESOLUTIONS 

& 

ORDINANCES 

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 87



RESOLUTION 2014 - 47 

 

 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN PERSONAL PROPERTY SURPLUS AND 

AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO DISPOSE OF SUCH PROPERTY 

 

WHEREAS,  the Department Heads of the City of Daphne have determined that the items listed 

below are no longer required for public or municipal purposes;  and 

 

WHEREAS, the items listed below are recommended for disposal. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne 

that  

1. The property listed below is hereby declared to be surplus property, and 

 

  DEPT EQ/VEH# DESCRIPTION     VIN 

Mechanical 7165 1987 Generator  Briggs 10 HP 

5.5KW Model 221432 

 

Mechanical 2527 1979 Generator Briggs 8HP  3KW 

Model 190437 

A880251 

  

2. The Mayor is authorized to advertise and accept bids through Govdeals.com as contracted 

for the sale of such personal property, and 

 

3. The Mayor is authorized to sell said property to the highest bidder and deposit any and all 

proceeds to the General Fund.  The Mayor is further authorized to direct the disposition of 

any property which is not claimed by any bidder. 

 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, this               day of                     , 2014. 

           

      

                                                                                                                                                                                           

_____________________________ 

                                                                              Dane Haygood, Mayor 

       

 

ATTEST: 

___________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 88



RESOLUTION NO.  2014-49 
 

2014-Q-PORTABLE RESTROOM 
 

WHEREAS, The City of Daphne is required under section 41-16-20 of the Code of 
Alabama to secure competitive bids for items in excess of $15,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne acknowledges that the cost for the PORTABLE 
RESTROOM will exceed this amount; and 
 
WHEREAS, Monies have been budgeted ($45,000) for the purchase of a 
PORTABLE RESTROOM; and 
 
WHEREAS, No bids were received and therefore can be negotiated; and 
 
WHEREAS, Negotiated bids were received and staff has reviewed the 
negotiated bids for the PORTABLE RESTROOM ($42,940 + $2,030 shipping) and 
determined that the negotiated bid as presented is reasonable; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff recommends the negotiated bid for the PORTABLE 
RESTROOM be awarded to Jag Mobile Solutions. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, 
THAT THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby 
accept the negotiated bid of Jag Mobile Solutions in the amount of $44,970 
($42,940 + $2,030 shipping) for a Portable Restroom unit for BID SPECIFICATION 
NO. 2014-Q-PORTABLE RESTROOM. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS             day of _                _, 2014. 
                                                             
 
           

_____________________________ 
                                                                       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
        
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 89



ORDINANCE 2014-32 
 
 

APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS:  MAST ARM POLES & SIGNAL UPGRADE: 
JOHNSON ROAD & US HWY 98 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2013-50 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2014 
Budget on September 23, 2013; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2014 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2014 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, Alabama Department of Transportation (ALDOT) will be 
reconfiguring the intersection of U.S. 98 and Johnson Road by shifting and 
adding turn lanes; and 
 
WHEREAS, signals throughout the City are being systematically upgraded as 
needed for enhanced traffic flow and to allow the use of an Intelligent Traffic Signal 
System; and 
 
WHEREAS,  in addition to the reconfiguration of the turn lanes at U.S. and Johnson 
Road Mast Arm Poles & Signal Upgrades are needed for this upgrade; and 
 
WHEREAS,   ALDOT will reimburse the City 50% of the $150,000 project cost  
for the Mast Arm Poles installation and Signal Upgrades. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that  

1) funds in the amount of $75,000  from General Fund be are hereby appropriated 
and  made a part of the Fiscal Year 2014 budget for the Mast Arm Poles & Signal 
Upgrade at Johnson Road & US Highway 98 and  

2) the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute any documents required in order for 
the City of Daphne to participate in such intersection project.  
  
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ______________    , 2014. 
 

 
             

_________________________________ 
                                                                       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
           
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 90



CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-33  

 

    

Ordinance to Pre-zone Property Located  

Northwest of the Intersection of County Roads 13 and 64 

John White-Spunner, Kidco, L.L.C.; John White-Spunner Sidno, L.L.C. and Matt White 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 WHEREAS, John White-Spunner, Kidco, L.L.C.; John White-Spunner & Sidno, L.L.C. 

and Matt White, as the owners of certain real property located within the unincorporated area of 

Baldwin County, Alabama, has requested that said property be pre-zoned from B-1, Professional 

Business Baldwin County District 15, in the Extraterritorial Planning Jurisdiction of Daphne to B-

2, General Business; and, 

 

WHEREAS, said real property is Northwest of the intersection of County Roads 13 and 64, and 

more particularly described as follows:  

 
COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 16, T5S-R2E, BALDWIN 

COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 16, T5S-R2E, 

RUN S 89° 57' 46" W 209.00 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE RUN N 00° 00' 46" W 38.76 FEET TO 

THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE PROPERTY HEREIN DESCRIBED; SAID POINT BEING 

ON THE NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF BALDWIN COUNTY HIGHWAY NO. 64 (80' R/W); 

THENCE RUN N 00° 00' 23" E 170.24 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE RUN N 89° 55' 27" E 167.80 

FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF BALDWIN COUNTY HIGHWAY 

NO. 13 (80' R/W); THENCE ALONG SAID WEST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF BALDWIN COUNTY 

HIGHWAY NO. 13 (80' R/W), RUN S 00° 36' 06" E 120.22 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE 

CONTINUING ALONG SAID WEST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF BALDWIN COUNTY HIGHWAY 

NO. 13 (80' R/W), RUN S 44° 56' 44" W 70.85 FEET TO A POINT ON THE AFOREMENTIONED 

NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF BALDWIN COUNTY HIGHWAY NO. 64 (80' R/W); THENCE 

ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF BALDWIN COUNTY HIGHWAY NO. 64 (80' 

R/W), RUN S 89° 57' 07" W 119.03 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  CONTAINING 27,459 

SQUARE FEET OR 0.6304 ACRE. 

 

WHEREAS, at the City of Daphne Planning Commission meeting on June 26, 2014, the 

Commission considered said request and set forth a favorable recommendation to the City Council 

of the City of Daphne regarding said property pre-zoning request with the motion to set forth a 

favorable recommendation passing; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, due notice of said proposed pre-zoning has been provided to the public as 

required by law through publication and open display at the Daphne Public Library and City Hall, a 

public hearing was held before the City Council on August 4, 2014; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne after due consideration and upon 

consideration of the notes of the Planning Commission, deemed that said application for pre-zoning 

of the above described real property is proper and in the best interest of the health, safety and 

welfare of the citizens of the City of Daphne, Alabama;  and 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 91



ORDINANCE 2014-33    PREZONE PROPERTY LOCATED AT COUNTY HWYS 13 & 64       PAGE   2 

 

 

SECTION I: ZONING 

 

That above described real property is hereby pre-zoned from B-1 Professional Business 

Baldwin County District 15, in the Extraterritorial Planning Jurisdiction of Daphne to City of 

Daphne Zone B-2, General Business, and that the zoning ordinance and zoning map be amended to 

reflect the said zoning change.    

 

SECTION II: REPEALER.  

 

 All other City Ordinances or parts thereof in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance, in 

so far as they conflict, are hereby repealed. 

 

SECTION III: SEVERABILITY.  
 

 The provisions of this Ordinance are severable. If any provision, section, paragraph, sentence, 

or part thereof shall be held unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect or impair the 

remainder of said Ordinance, it being the legislative intent to ordain and enact each provision, 

section, paragraph, sentence, and part thereof separately and independently of each other. 

 

SECTION IV: EFFECTIVE AND EXPIRATION DATE.  
 

 This Ordinance, and in particular the pre-zoning shall take effect after the date of its 

approval by the City Council of the City of Daphne and publication as required by law.  Pursuant to 

Code of Alabama (1975) Section 11-52-85, the zoning of the property, shall become effective upon 

the date the territory is annexed into the corporate limits, if any portion of the territory is not 

annexed into the corporate limits within 180 days of the initiation of annexation proceedings as 

provided by law then this pre-zoning shall be null and void. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS           day of                        , 2014. 

                                       

  

       _____________________________ 

       Dane Haygood, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes  

City Clerk, MMC 

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 92



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 93



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 94



CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

ORDINANCE 2014-34 

 

 

ORDINANCE TO ANNEX PROPERTY CONTIGUOUS 

TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE 

Property Located  

Northwest of the Intersection of County Roads 13 and 64 

John White-Spunner, Kidco, L.L.C.; John White-Spunner Sidno, L.L.C.  

and Matt White 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

 
 WHEREAS, on the 26

th
 day of June, 2014, being the owner of all real property hereinafter described, 

did file with the City Clerk a petition asking that the said tracts or parcels of land be annexed into and 

become part of the City of Daphne, Alabama; and 

 

 WHEREAS, said petition did contain the signatures of all owners of the described territory and a 

map of said property showing its relationship to the corporate limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama; and 

 

WHEREAS, after proper publication, a public hearing was held by the City Council on August 4, 

2014 concerning the petition for annexation; and 

 

WHEREAS, said petition has been presented to the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne 

on June 26, 2014 and an affirmative recommendation was approved for the City Council to consider said 

request for annexation and said property; and 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 SECTION ONE:   ANNEXATION 

 

 The City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama finds that and declares as the legislative body of 

the City of Daphne, Alabama that it is in the best interest of the citizens of the City of Daphne, Alabama 

and the citizens of the affected area, to bring the territory described in Section Two of this Ordinance into 

the City of Daphne, Alabama, and it did further determine that all legal requirements for annexing said 

real property have been met pursuant to Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-24, et seq., Code of Alabama, 

1975; effective on publication as required by Section 11-42-21, Code of Alabama 1975, as amended. 

 

 

 SECTION TWO:  DESCRIPTION OF TERRITORY 

 

 The boundary lines of the City of Daphne, Alabama, be, and the same are hereby altered or 

rearranged so as to include all the territory hereto before encompassed by the corporate limits of the City 

of Daphne, Alabama and in addition thereto the following described property, to-wit: 

 

 Owners:  John White-Spunner, Kidco, L.L.C.; John White-Spunner & Sidno, L.L.C. and Matt White  

 

 

 
 

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 95



ORDINANCE 2014-34   ANNEXATION OF PROPERTY LOCATED AT COUNTY HWYS 13 & 64        PAGE   2 

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 16, T5S-R2E, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; 

THENCE ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 16, T5S-R2E, RUN S 89° 57' 46" W 209.00 FEET TO A 

POINT; THENCE RUN N 00° 00' 46" W 38.76 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE PROPERTY HEREIN 

DESCRIBED; SAID POINT BEING ON THE NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF BALDWIN COUNTY HIGHWAY 

NO. 64 (80' R/W); THENCE RUN N 00° 00' 23" E 170.24 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE RUN N 89° 55' 27" E 167.80 

FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF BALDWIN COUNTY HIGHWAY NO. 13 (80' R/W); 

THENCE ALONG SAID WEST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF BALDWIN COUNTY HIGHWAY NO. 13 (80' R/W), RUN S 

00° 36' 06" E 120.22 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID WEST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF 

BALDWIN COUNTY HIGHWAY NO. 13 (80' R/W), RUN S 44° 56' 44" W 70.85 FEET TO A POINT ON THE 

AFOREMENTIONED NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF BALDWIN COUNTY HIGHWAY NO. 64 (80' R/W); 

THENCE ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF BALDWIN COUNTY HIGHWAY NO. 64 (80' R/W), RUN 

S 89° 57' 07" W 119.03 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  CONTAINING 27,459 SQUARE FEET OR 0.6304 

ACRE. 

 

  

SECTION THREE:   MAP OF PROPERTY 

 

The property hereby annexed into the City of Daphne, Alabama is set forth and described in Exhibit “B” 

and attached hereto a map of the property showing its relationship to the corporate limits of the 

municipality of the City of Daphne and made a part of this ordinance. 

 

SECTION FOUR: PUBLICATION 

 

 This Ordinance shall be published as required by Section 11-42-21 Code of Alabama 1975, as 

amended, and the property described herein shall be annexed into the corporate limits of the City of 

Daphne, and a certified copy of the same shall be filed with the Office of the Judge of Probate of Baldwin 

County, Alabama as required by Section 11-42-21, Code of Alabama 1975, as amended. 

 

 APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, THIS THE ______ DAY OF ________________, 2014. 

 

 

                                              

      _____________________________             

      Dane Haygood, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 96



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 97



August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 98



CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE 2014-35 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 

ORDINANCE TO REPEAL AND REPLACE ORDINANCE 2008-19 TO 

PROTECT THE AIR QUALITY IN THE CITY OF DAPHNE 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

 WHEREAS, Ordinance 2008-19 was approved and adopted February 18, 2008 to 

protect the public health and welfare by protecting the air quality within the City of 

Daphne; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that various sections of Ordinance 

2008-19 should be repealed and replaced to include E-Cigarettes and to eliminate any 

vagueness contained herein; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council for the City of Daphne, Alabama has deemed it to 

be beneficial to the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of Daphne, Alabama to 

repeal Ordinance 2008-19 and replace the same with new standards as follows: 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Daphne, Alabama, as follows: 

 

 SECTION ONE: DEFINITIONS 

 

 The following words and phrases, whenever used in this Ordinance, shall be 

construed as defined in this Section: 

 

a. “Assisted Living Facility” means a living arrangement in which people 

with special needs, especially older people with disabilities reside in a 

facility that provide help with everyday tasks such as bathing, dressing, and 

taking medication. 

 

b. “Bar” means a stand-alone enclosed area in which the principal or sole 

purpose and business of the establishment is the serving of alcoholic 

beverages for consumption which comprises at least sixty percent (60%) or 

greater in gross sales.  This term includes such establishments where the 

sale or service of food is made, but only if it is incidental to the service of 

alcoholic beverages.  Bars must be posted off limits to minors and must not 

allow any minors inside. 

 

c. “Business” means a sole proprietorship, partnership, joint venture, 

corporation, or other business entity, either for-profit or not-for-profit, 

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 99



ORDINANCE 2014-35                      PROTECT AIR QUALITY IN CITY OF DAPHNE 

Page 2 of 8 

 

includes retail establishments where goods or services are sold; 

professional corporations and other entities where legal, medical, dental, 

engineering, architectural, or other professional services are delivered and 

private clubs. 

 

d. “E-cigs” means usage of any electronic cigarette (e-cig or e-cigarette), 

personal vaporizer (PV) or electronic nicotine delivery system (ENDS) or 

any battery powered device which simulates tobacco smoking. 

 

e. “Employee” means a person who is hired by another to perform a task or 

job in consideration for direct or indirect monetary wages, gain or profit, 

and a person who volunteers his or her services for a non-profit entity.  This 

term includes independent contractors. 

 

f. “Employer” means a person, business, partnership, association, corporation, 

including a municipal corporation, trust, or non-profit entity that hires the 

services of one or more employees. 

 

g. “Enclosed Area” means that area between a floor and ceiling that is 

enclosed or is capable of being enclosed, on all sides by solid walls, 

windows, and/or doorways and which is climate controlled by a HVAC or 

similar air handling system. 

 

h. “Place of Employment” means an area under the control of an employer 

where employees normally frequent during the course of employment, 

including, but not limited to, work areas, employee lounges, restrooms, 

conference rooms, meeting rooms, classrooms, employee cafeterias, 

hallways, and vehicles.  A private residence is not a “Place of 

Employment” unless it is also used as a location of a business, child care, 

adult care or health care facility. 

 

i.  “Private Club” means an organization, whether incorporated or not, that is 

the owner, lessee, or occupant of a building or portion thereof used 

exclusively for club purposes at all times, which is operated solely for a 

recreational, fraternal, social, patriotic, political, benevolent, or athletic 

purpose, but not for pecuniary gain, and which only sells alcoholic 

beverages incidental to its operation.  The affairs and management of the 

organization are conducted by a board of directors, executive committee, or 

similar body chosen by the members at an annual meeting.  The 

organization has established by-laws and/or a constitution to govern its 

activities.  The organization has been granted an exemption from the 

payment of federal income tax under 26 U.S.C. Section 501.  A private club 

is not open to the general public.  A private club established for the purpose 

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 100



ORDINANCE 2014-35                      PROTECT AIR QUALITY IN CITY OF DAPHNE 

Page 3 of 8 

 

of avoiding the prohibitions on smoking called for in this Ordinance shall 

be deemed a public place, however. 

 

j. “Public Place” means an enclosed area to which the general public is 

invited or is permitted, including but not limited to, banks educational 

facilities, health care facilities, hotel and motel lobbies, Laundromats, 

public transportation, reception areas, restaurants, retail food production 

and marketing establishments, retail service establishments, retail stores, 

shopping malls, sports arenas, theaters, and waiting rooms.  A “Private 

Club” facility is a “Public Place” when being used for a function to which 

the general public is invited or allowed to attend.  A private residence is not 

a “Public Place” unless it is used as a business location, child care, adult 

day care, or health care faculty. 

 

k. “Retail tobacco store” means any retail establishment utilized primarily for 

the sale of tobacco products and smoking accessories in which the sale of 

other products, including food and beverages, does not exceed forty percent 

(40%) of gross revenues. 

 

l. “Smoking” means inhaling, exhaling, burning or carrying any lighted cigar, 

cigarette, pipe, or other lighted tobacco product in any manner or form.  

 

m. “Sports Arena” means sports pavilions, stadiums, public recreational fields, 

gymnasiums, health spas, boxing arenas, swimming pools, roller and ice 

rinks, bowling alleys, and other similar places where members of the 

general public assemble to engage in physical exercise, participate in 

athletic competition, or witness sports or other events. 

 

 SECTION TWO: APPLICATION OF ORDINANCE TO CITY OWNED,  

                                            OPERATED OR LEASED FACILITIES 

 

  All property, including building, vehicle, and parks which are owned, 

leased, or operated by the City of Daphne shall be subject to the provisions of this 

Ordinance. 

 

          SECTION THREE:   PROHIBITION OF SMOKING IN PUBLIC PLACES 

 

  Smoking shall be prohibited in all enclosed Public Places, as well as the 

areas within a reasonable distance outside of the main entrance(s) of such Public Places, 

within the City of Daphne.  E-Cigs shall be prohibited in all enclosed facilities that are 

owned, operated or leased by the  City. For the purposes of this ordinance, City vehicles 

shall be considered enclosed facilities. 

 

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 101



ORDINANCE 2014-35                      PROTECT AIR QUALITY IN CITY OF DAPHNE 

Page 4 of 8 

 

 SECTION FOUR: PROHIBITION OF SMOKING IN PLACES OF  

                                            EMPLOYMENT 

 

 Smoking shall be prohibited in all enclosed areas which are a place of 

employment.  This includes common work areas, auditoriums, classrooms, conference 

and meeting rooms, private offices, elevators, hallways, medical facilities, cafeterias, 

employee lounges, stairs, restrooms, and all other enclosed areas.  This prohibition on 

smoking shall be communicated to all existing employees by the effective date of this 

Ordinance and to all prospective employees upon their application of employment. 

 

 SECTION FIVE: PROHIBITION OF SMOKING IN OUTDOOR ARENAS   

                                            AND STADIUMS 

 

 Smoking shall be prohibited in the seating areas of all outdoor sports arenas, 

stadiums, and amphitheaters, as well as in bleachers and grandstands for use by 

spectators at sporting and other public events. 

 

 SECTION SIX: REASONABLE DISTANCE 

 

 Smoking or E-Cigs shall be prohibited within a reasonable distance of twenty 

linear feet (20’) outside all main entrances/exits to enclosed areas where smoking or E-

Cigs, respectively are prohibited in this Ordinance. 

 

 SECTION SEVEN:   WHERE SMOKING IS NOT PROHIBITED 

 

 Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance to the contrary, the 

following areas shall be exempt from the prohibitions in this Ordinance: 

 

a. Private residences which are not also a place of employment, business or 

public place as herein defined. 

 

b. Hotel and motel rooms that are rented to guests and are designated as 

smoking rooms; provided, however, that no more than thirty percent (30%) 

of rooms rented to guests in a hotel or motel may be so designated.  All 

smoking rooms on the same floor must be contiguous and smoke from 

these rooms must not infiltrate into areas where smoking is prohibited 

under the provisions of this Ordinance.  The status of rooms as smoking or 

non-smoking may not be changed, except to add additional non-smoking 

rooms. 

 

c. Private clubs when being used or occupied by its members and their guests 

only.  This provision shall only apply when no individual under the age of 

nineteen (19) is present. 

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 102



ORDINANCE 2014-35                      PROTECT AIR QUALITY IN CITY OF DAPHNE 

Page 5 of 8 

 

 

d. Places of employment that do not meet the definition of an Enclosed Area 

(except those covered by the provisions of Section Five and Section Six). 

 

e. Bars. 

 

f. Private and semi-private rooms in assisted living facilities or long-term care 

facilities that are occupied by one or more persons, all of whom are 

smokers and have requested in writing to be placed in a room where 

smoking is permitted, provided that smoke from these places does not 

infiltrate into areas where smoking is prohibited under the provisions of this 

Ordinance. 

 

g. Retail tobacco stores, provided that no on premise consumption of 

alcoholic beverages is permitted and smoke from these establishments does 

not infiltrate into areas where smoking is prohibited under the provisions of 

this Ordinance. 

 

 SECTION EIGHT:     DECLARATION OF ESTABLISHMENT AS NON-                      

                                                  SMOKING 

 

  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance, an owner, operator, 

manager, or other person in control of an establishment, facility, or outdoor area may 

designate the premises as a non-smoking place.  Smoking shall be prohibited in any place 

in which a sign conforming to the requirements of Section 9(a) is posted.  Any owner, 

operator, manager, or other person in control of private premises that complies with 

Section 9(a) of this Ordinance may also prohibit use of E-Cigs. 

 

 SECTION NINE: POSTING OF SIGNS 

 

a. “No Smoking” signs or the international “No Smoking” symbol (consisting 

of a pictorial representation of a burning cigarette enclosed in a red circle 

with a red bar across it) shall be clearly and conspicuously posted in every 

public place and place of employment where smoking is prohibited by this 

Ordinance, by the owner, operator, manager, or other person in control of 

that place. 

 

b. Every public place and place of employment where smoking is prohibited 

by this Ordinance shall have posted at every entrance a conspicuous sign 

clearly stating that smoking is prohibited. 

 

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 103



ORDINANCE 2014-35                      PROTECT AIR QUALITY IN CITY OF DAPHNE 

Page 6 of 8 

 

c. All ashtrays shall be removed from any area where smoking is prohibited 

by this Ordinance by the owner, operator, manager, or other person having 

control of the area.  

 

 SECTION TEN: NON-RETALIATION; NON-WAVIER OF RIGHTS 

 

a. No person or employer shall discharge, refuse to hire, or in any manner 

retaliate against an employee, applicant for employment, or customer 

because that employee, applicant, or customer exercises any rights afforded 

by this Ordinance or reports or attempts to prosecute a violation of this 

Ordinance. 

 

b. An employee who works in a setting where an employer allows smoking 

does not waive or otherwise surrender any legal rights the employee may 

have against the employer or any other party. 

 

 SECTION ELEVEN: ENFORCEMENT 

 

a. This Ordinance shall be enforced by the Daphne Police Department or 

Code Enforcement Office as designated by the Mayor. 

 

b. Notice of the provisions of this Ordinance shall be given to all applicants 

for a business license in the City of Daphne. 

 

c. Any citizen who desires to register a complaint under this Ordinance may 

initiate enforcement with the Daphne Police Department. 

 

d. The Health Department, Police Department, Fire Department or their 

designees shall inspect for compliance with this Ordinance. 

 

e. An owner, manager, operator, or employee of an establishment regulated by 

this Ordinance shall inform persons violating this Ordinance of the 

appropriate provisions thereof. 

 

f. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance, an employee or 

private citizen may bring legal action to enforce this Ordinance. 

 

g. In addition to the remedies provided by the provisions of this Section, the 

City Clerk/Administrator or any person aggrieved by the failure of the 

owner, operator, manager, or other person in control of a public place or a 

place of employment to comply with the provisions of this Ordinance may 

apply for an injunction to enforce those provisions in any court of 

competent jurisdiction. 

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 104



ORDINANCE 2014-35                      PROTECT AIR QUALITY IN CITY OF DAPHNE 

Page 7 of 8 

 

 

 SECTION TWELVE: VIOLATION AND PENALTIES 

 

a. Any person who smokes in an area where smoking is prohibited by the 

provisions of this Ordinance shall, upon conviction, be guilty of an 

infraction punishable by a fine not to exceed FIFTY AND NO/100 

DOLLARS ($50.00) per occurrence plus court costs. 

 

b. A person who owns, manages, operates, or otherwise controls a public 

place or place of employment and who fails to comply with the provisions 

of the Ordinance shall be guilty of an infraction, punishable by: 

    

1. A fine not exceeding ONE HUNDRED AND 

NO/100 DOLLARS ($100.00) for a first 

violation. 

 

2. A fine not exceeding TWO HUNDRED AND 

NO/100 DOLLARS ($200.00) for a second 

violation within one (1) year. 

 

3. A fine not exceeding FIVE HUNDRED AND 

NO/100 DOLLARS ($500.00) for each 

additional violation within one (1) year. 

 

c. In addition to the fines established by this Section, violation of this 

Ordinance by a person who owns, manages, operates, or otherwise controls 

a public place or place of employment may result in the suspension or 

revocation of any permit or license issued to the person for the premises on 

which the violation occurred. 

 

d. Violations of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be a public nuisance, 

which may be abated by the City Council by restraining order, preliminary 

and permanent injunction, or other means provided for by law.  The City 

may take action to recover the costs of the nuisance abatement. 

 

e. Each day on which a violation of this Ordinance occurs shall be considered 

a separate and distinct violation. 

 

 SECTION THIRTEEN: SEVERABILITY 

 

  If any provision, clause, sentence, or paragraph of this Ordinance or the 

application thereof to any person or circumstances shall be held invalid, that invalidity 

shall not affect the other provisions of this Ordinance which may be given effect without 

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 105



ORDINANCE 2014-35                      PROTECT AIR QUALITY IN CITY OF DAPHNE 

Page 8 of 8 

 

the invalid provision or application, and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are 

declared to be severable. 

 

 SECTION FOURTEEN: REPEALER 

 

  Ordinance No. 2008-19 is hereby repealed in its entirety.  All other City 

Ordinances or parts thereof in conflict with the provision of this Ordinance, in so far as 

they conflict, are hereby repealed. 

 

 SECTION FIFTEEN: EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

 This Ordinance shall be effective immediately from and after the date of its 

adoption and its publication as required by law. 

 

 APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 

Alabama, this the _____ day of _______________, 2014. 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       DANE HAYGOOD, MAYOR 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

REBECCA A. HAYES, CITY CLERK 

 

 

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 106



ORDINANCE 2014-37 
 

Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA):  Hazard Mitigation Grant Program 
(HMGP) Disaster Assistance for Lamar and Willet White, 104 Gordon Circle 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2013-50 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2014 Budget on 
September 23, 2013; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2014 budget, the City Council has 
determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and made a part of 
the Fiscal Year 2014 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, on April the 29th and 30th the City of Daphne received 16.5” of rainfall which lead to 
severe flooding; and 
 

WHEREAS, on May 2, 2014, FEMA declared the event a Major Disaster Declaration; Alabama 
Severe Storms, Tornadoes, Straight line Winds, and Flooding (DR-4176); and 
 
WHEREAS, the declaration activates the FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HGMP).   
The HMGP provides grants to states and local governments to implement long-term hazard 
mitigation measures after a major disaster declaration.  The purpose of the HMGP is to reduce 
the loss of life and property due to natural disasters and to enable mitigation measures to be 
implemented during the immediate recovery from a disaster. The HMGP is authorized under 
Section 404 of the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act.  Long-
term mitigation measures may include but not be limited to; property acquisition and structure 
demolition, property acquisition and structure relocation, structure elevation, mitigation 
reconstruction, dry flood proofing, etc.; and 
 
WHEREAS, the HGMP requires a state or local government sponsor; and 25% cost share for 
the grant: and   
 
WHEREAS, the home of Lamar and Willet White, 104 Gordon Circle, Lot 30 Unit 21 in Lake 
Forest was flooded during the April 29-30th, 2014 disaster; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Whites have requested to participate in the FEMA HMGP National Flood 
Insurance Program Buyout where the home would be purchased by FEMA with FEMA providing 
75% of the approved market value of the residence; and with the homeowner or the sponsor 
providing the additional 25% share; and 
 
WHEREAS, the White residence has an estimated market value of $150,000; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne 
that: 
 
Option A (Full Match) 

1)  The City of Daphne shall sponsor the approved qualifying grant application    
 with the following conditions: 

a. The property owner shall handle the entire FEMA HMGP application process; 
and  

b. The City shall provide the 25% cost share for the grant.  A General Fund 
appropriation not to exceed 25% of the FEMA approved market value of the  
 
 

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 107



RESOLUTION 2014-37          FEMA BUYOUT – WHITE PROPERTY                 PAGE   2 
 
 

c. home ($37,500.00) less any in-kind labor/cash match as incurred for 
expenses such as demolition of the home shall be appropriated; and   

d. The City will retain ownership of the vacant lot and shall deed restrict the lot 
to remain as floodway green space 
 

2) The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute such proposal and any and all   additional  
documents necessary to carry out the purpose of requesting  such  
funds from FEMA; and 

 
Option B (DEMO Only) 

1)   The City of Daphne shall sponsor the approved qualifying grant application   
       with the following conditions: 

a.  The property owner shall handle the entire FEMA HMGP application   
     process; and 
b.  The City shall provide the demolish expense cost share, not to   
     exceed $10,000.   A General Fund appropriation not to exceed $10,000  
     less any in-kind labor/cash match as incurred for expenses such as  
     demolition of the home shall be appropriated; and   
c. The City will retain ownership of the vacant lot and shall deed restrict     

The lot to remain as floodway green space 
 

2)   The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute such proposal and any and all  
       additional documents necessary to carry out the purpose of requesting such  
       funds from FEMA; and 

 
Option C (Match Determined by Council) 

1) The City of Daphne shall sponsor the approved qualifying grant application  
 with the following conditions: 

a. The property owner shall handle the entire FEMA HMGP application process; 
and  

b. The City shall provide the (TBD%) cost share for the grant.  A General Fund 
appropriation not to exceed (TBD)% of the FEMA approved market value of 
the home, less any in-kind labor/cash match as incurred for expenses such 
as demolition of the home; and   

c. The City will retain ownership of the vacant lot and shall deed restrict the lot 
to remain as floodway green space 
 

2) The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute such proposal and any and all additional  
documents necessary to carry out the purpose of requesting  such funds from FEMA; 
and 

 
  

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, this _____ 
day of ___________, 2014. 
              

       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
      
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

August 18, 2014 Council Meeting 108


	AGENDA
	ROLL CALL
	Council Minutes - August 4
	Council Minutes - August 5 - Special Called - Bell
	Council Minutes - August 7 - Special Called - Hinson
	Council Minutes - August 11 - Special Called - NRCS
	Council Work Session Minutes
	Report of Standing Committees
	Finance Minutes
	Backup to Finance Minutes (2)
	Buildings & Property Minutes
	Public Safety Minutes
	Ordinance Committee Mintues
	Report of Special Boards
	BZA Minutes
	BZA Report
	Report of Officers
	ALDOT MOA - Debris Removal on ALDOT ROW
	Parade Permit
	Resolutions & Ordinances
	2014-47 - RES - LIST-GOVDEALS COM
	2014-49 - RES - Portable Restroom-2014
	2014-32 - ORD - Mast Arm PolesSignal Upgrade-Johnson Rd-US98-ALDOT 50-100%
	2014-33 - PREZONE WHITE SPUNNER -  7-02-14
	Backup to 2014-33 - ORD
	2014-34 - ANNEXATION  -  WHITE SPUNNER
	Backup to 2014-34 - ORD
	2014-35 - ORD - REPEAL - SMOKING ORDINANCE 06-18-14 (2)
	2014-37 - ORD - White Property Settlement-104 Gordon Cicle-LF-FEMA Buyout



